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I. KEY ENTITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT

(a) Background information

Michuki Technical Training Institute (MTTI) was incorporated/ established under the TVET Act
2013.The entity is domiciled in Kenya and is located in Iyego Location, Kangema Sub-county in
Murang’a County. It has no branches. The institute is under the Ministry of Education.

(b) Principal Activities

The Mandate of Michuki Technical Training Institute is to provide Technical, Vocational and
Entrepreneurship Training (TVET) using appropriate technology to empower trainees for
individual and national development. The Institute provides leadership in designing suitable plans
and strategies that contribute to high and sustainable socio-economic development; The Institute
has a credible strategic plan and performance contract that delivers the desired goals. It is also our
undertaking that we will perform our responsibilities diligently and to the best of our abilities to
support the achievement of the agreed performance targets.

Vision
Our vision is “A leader in the provision of Technical, Vocational, and Entrepreneurial Training”.

Mission

Qur mission is to provide quality technical, vocational and entrepreneurship training
(TVET) to empower graduates for individual development and global competitiveness.

(c) Key Management
The entity’s day-to-day management is under the following key organs:
Board of Governors

Accounting officer/Principal
Heads of departments

(d) Fiduciary Management

The key management personnel who held office during the financial year ended 30th June
2021 and who had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

Name g R TR MU | Responsibility .~~~ e ey
TOP.MANAGEMENT: =itk & 0l i oo s s
John G Ndirangu Chief Executive Officer/ Principal

Simon Njoroge Deputy Principal/ Administration

Newton Shivachi Deputy Principal/Academic

Gerald Wachira Registrar

Michael N Muthembwa Dean

Odima Bahati Finance Officer e
ACADEMIC MANAGEMENT: #i bilid S Sl g i v S o
Daniel Muhia H O D Electrical

LydiahWatheka H O D Institutional Management
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Leah W Chege HODICT

David Githaiga H O D Mechanical

John Gakinya H O D Building

Joseph Ndirangu H O D Business

William Ndungu H O D Mathematics
Caroline Anindo H O D Liberal

Gerald Wachira ISO Management Representative
Hannah Mutiga Industrial Liaisons” Officer
Hosea Yegon Sports Office

James Ngechu Guidance & Counselling
Gibson Kariuki Procurement Officer

John Gituku Internal Auditor

Esther Kinywa Human Recourse

(e) Fiduciary Oversight Arrangements

‘Name  of
gF ¥ g Al ST

; | the
Committee ||

ATLLE R TP
e TR

| = A T R e i e

Members SaHaER g s e

Activities

Finance and Resource

1. Dr James GichanaOngwae
2. Dr.Okoth George Odhiambo

Approve quarterly reports for
onward submission to the full
board

Mobilization
3. Mr. Joseph N.Mwangi Interview BOG employees
: Adopt  suggested B fi
Technical and | | Eng Wilson K Bett P o Q  for
Infrastructure ) ) implementation
2. Mr. KiptumKibet Charles
Attend schedule site meetings
Receive discuss and approve audit
report for onward ratification b
1. Dr. KiptumKibet Charles * I Y
Risk and Audit full board

2.Veronicah Maina

Develop areas of improvement in

risk and audit

iii
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KEY ENTITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(43) Entity Headquarters

P.O. Box 4-10202 Kangema

Muranga County

Kangema Sub County

St. Marys - lyego road off Karugia Shopping Centre

() Entity Contacts

Telephone :( +254)0725-912313
E-mail: michukitech@yahoo.com
Website: www.michukitech.co.ke

(h) Entity Bankers

i) Kenya Commercial Bank Ltd
Muranga Branch
P.O BOX 112-10200
Muranga Town

ii) Equity Bank Ltd
Kangema Branch
P.O BOX private bag-102020
Kangema Town

iii) Amica Savings & Credit
Kangema Branch
P.O BOX 816-10200
Kangema Town

(i) Independent Auditors
Auditor General
Office of Auditor General
Anniversary Towers, Institute Way
P.O. Box 30084
GPO 00100
Mairobi, Kenya

() Principal Legal Adviser

The Attorney General
State Law Office
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 40112

City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya

iv
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II. THE BOARDOF GOVERNORS

S
e e lil T £F o Sl
'Eﬁ{l;%ﬂjﬁﬂ" -iﬂ‘ -'. -:'.'.-'n'ﬂ'- RN

1. Board of governor (chairman)

b s 1
e
Silas Muguongo
Profession: Medical Laboratory technologist

Date of birth: (7. 08.1961

Academic Qualifications:

Candidate MSc (Micro biology)

BSc medical laboratory Science

HND Micro biology

Dip (medical laboratory Technology)
Certificate (medical laboratory Technology)
Advanced Dip (Technical Education)

Work experience:

= Laboratory Technology (1986-1989)
Lecturer KMTC (1990 - 2010)
Lecturer Outspan (2010 — to date)
Dean of student

Board member

et e )

i

Dr James GichanaOngwae
Profession:Lecturer

Date of birth:20/11/1953

Academic qualifications

PHD Entrepreneurship

MSc¢ Entrepreneurship

B.E.D Vocational Education

Dip Ed Technical Education (Electrical Engineering)

Work experience :

Assistant Director (Retired)

Consultant in education research and training
Lecturer in innovation and development finance

3. Board member

Eng. Wilson K Bet
Profession: Mechanical Engineer

Date of birth:24/12/1981

Academic Qualifications:

MSc. Candidate Energy Technology

BSc. Mechanical Engineering

Dip. Project management and Development
Certificate in Hydropower Development and
Management

Work experience :

* Senior Engineer KenGen(Upper Tana Region
Operation)
Assistant Factory Manager Eastern Produce
Kenya
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Date of birth:03/03/1980

Academic Qualifications:
PHD (GIS & Remote Sensing)
PHD (GIS &Remote Sensing)
MSC(Health Informatics)
BSC(Information Technology )
Higher Diploma(Education)

Work experience:

ot " eorge Odhiambo * Head of ICT department —Kenya Railways

Profession: ICT Informatics - g:;?;rﬂﬂcﬁm faliityia Uliivessiip
* Lecturer Greatsa University
=  QMS Auditor-Kenya Railways Corporation
= Risk Officer - Kenya Railways Corporation
5. Board member Date of birth: 06/08/1980

Academic Qualifications:

Msc.-Master in Computer Science

Computer Systems,Bsc.

Diploma in Computer Science CCNA and A+

Mr _Joseph N.Mwangi

Profession: Lecturer(Adjunct) and ICT Work eprrience :
consultant *  Adjunct Lecturer at MMU

ICT consultant at Technical University of Kenya

Date of birth:12/12/1965

Academic Qualifications :
Academic qualifications
PHD Administration &Management
MED Administration &Management
BED
Diploma (KEMI)

Work experience :

Profession: Lecturer = Lecturer Chuka University

Academic qualifications = Principal — Kisanana Boys, Sosiyo Sec School ,
Baringo High

» Part time lecturer Kisii University and Mt.Kenya
University
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7. Board member(CDTVET)

MR .CHARLES NYOTA

Profession: CDTVET

Date of birth:10/10/1970

Academic Qualifications:
Masters in computer Science

Work experience:
* Quality Assurance office for 20years

John G Ndirangu
Profession: Teacher

Date of birth: 01/04/1959
Qualifications :

MBA — Strategic management
BBA — Business management
Diploma in Education

HND E.P.E

Work experience : TSC teacher 1990 — 2017
* PSC Trainer 2017 — to date
* Principal Michuki TTI since 2005

vil
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III. TOP MANAGEMENT TEAM

Date of birth: 01/04/1959
Qualifications :

MBA - Strategic management
BBA — Business management
Diploma in Education

HND E.P.E

1. Principal/ BOG Secretary
[ o T T

Work experience : TSC teacher 1990 — 2017
* PSC Trainer 2017 — to date

John G.Ndir;-ggg * Principal Michuki TTI since 2005

Profession :Trainer

Date of birth: 08/10/1967

2 Deputy Principal Admnistration Academie quilifications
" BBA — Business Administration

Higher Diploma in Entrepreneurship Development

Kenya Certificate of Education

Technical in Craft Certificate in Carpentry and Joinery

Work experience
= HOD Business Studies-Michuki TTI
=  HOD Carpentry and Joinery -Michuki TTI

Simon il Njn_r e = HOD and Trainer-Mawego TTI
Profession: Trainer

Date of birth: 11/02/1983

Academic Qualifications :

Master of Science (Electronics and Instrumentation)
Post graduate Diploma in Management

BED (SCIENCE) — Physics and Mathematics

3. Deputy Principal Academics

Work experience
» PSC Trainer — Michuki TTI
* Assistant Sports Officer — Michuki TTI
* HOD Mathematics / Science — Michuki TTI
= Performance Coordinator Michuki TTI
* Registrar — Michuki TTI
* DP Academics Affairs — Michuki TTI

Newton Shivachi
Profession: Trainer

viii
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4. Registrar

w ¥
i

Gerald Wachira
Profession-Trainer

Date of birth: 30/05/1975

Academic qualifications :
MBA - Finance
BED - Economic and Maths

Work experience
= Trainer Michuki TTI
* Management Representative- Michuki TTI
= Registrar Michuki TTI

5. Dean of Students

SN

Michael the:;lhwn
Profession-Trainer

Date of birth: 30/07/1978

Academic qualifications :

BE — Electrical and Electronic

Higher Diploma-Electronic Option

Diploma in Electrical Engineering(Power Option)
Diploma in Technical Education

Work experience
» Electrician -Dwa Sisal Plantation Estate
* Instructor-NYs Mombasa,UkundaYouth Poly.
* Instructor-Ngwata Youth Polytechnic

6 Finance Officer

CPA. Odima Bahati
Profession: Finance & Analyst, Trainer

Date of birth: 31/07/1992

Academic qualifications :

BCOM — Accounting Option

CPA(K) — Accounting Option

CIFA(K)-Finance & Investment Analysis

Diploma in Technical Education-Accounting Option

Work experience
* Financial Accountant ~Trailink Group Ltd
* Senior Accountant-Compassion International
* Accountant-Excel Works and Engineering Ltd
* Auditor-Ayuga and Associate CPA firm
® Trainer at Kabete National Polytechnic

ix
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IV.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the BOG, management, staff and students of Michuki TTI I would like to thank the
government through the Cabinet Secretary Ministry of Education for giving me the opportunity to serve in

this great institution. In the FY2020/2021 the following was achieved under my leadership.

b e A o

18.
19,
20.

15.

In the financial year 2020/2021 the board achieved the following-:
Established an ODEL department
Completed the internal and external works in the Electrical Building

Acquired equipment for the gymnasium

Increased internet bandwidth from 20MBPS to 80MBPS

Acquired library textbooks and e-learning related materials worth Ksh. 2,824,122,

Acquired workshop equipment worth Ksh. 19,290,813.

Acquired training materials for the different departments worth Ksh. 23,140,853,

Established and equipped a new board room

The management held (3) medical camps where screening and free consultation on HIV&AIDS and

Non Communicable diseases, and sensitization on COVID-19 was done.

. Operationalized food processing unit (under value additional equipment).
i1
12.
13.
14,
13
16.
17,

Completed the construction of the third floor of the library block.

Completed the construction of phase II of perimeter wall.

Drilled and operationalized bore hole

Started the construction of a modern male hostel

Acquired a 16 seat staff utility vehicle

The management updated data on the existing accommodation spaces within the community.
The management engaged in corporate social responsibility of carrying out a town clean up,
distributing free tree seedlings and branded dust bins.

There was increase in gross enrolment from 3308 to3585

22 youths were attached within the Institute

The Institute participated in the Mt Kenya region Athletics and we attained position number 1 out of
10 participating institutions where we were awarded 39 medals.

The BOG implemented the cross cutting issues in compliance with the Performance Contracting
requirements 1.e.

e Implementation of Service delivery Charter

e  Resolution of public complaints

¢ Disability mainstreaming
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e  Prevention of HIV and AIDS and Non Communicable Diseases.
¢  Continual enhancement of staff competence.

*  Corruption Prevention

e ICT Integration in Education

e  Asset Management

16. Developed a scheme of service for BOG employees

Future Projected Projects and Status

Complete construction of staff quarters
Construct a tuition block

Carry out a tracer study on our graduates
Install a hot water system in Muthaiga Hostel
Upgrade the access road from gate B to gate C
Install additional CCTV cameras for security
Increase acreage of the college

Increase student enrolment to 5000 students

-

Acquire National Polytechnic status

Signed
igne ; by |
“Silas G Muguongo
BOG Chairman

xi
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Y. REPORT OF THE PRINCIPAL

Michuki Technical Training institute is a tertiary institution that is well placed to offer quality and
relevant training to her graduates, tailored to ensure they contribute effectively to the attainment of the
country’s Vision 2030 strategic objectives. In furtherance of our mandate, we have committed ourselves
to consistently and regularly review, improve and consolidate our academic programs so as to remain

competitive in terms of quality and relevance, and address the needs of the society.

Under the guidance of the Board of Governors, we have set up structures and policies aimed at guiding
the institution in the right strategic direction. We have been able to start training on the implementation of
integrated management systems based on ISO 9001:2015 (QMS) and ISO/IEC 27001:2013 (ISMS). The

training involved top management, process owners and process actors.

Under my leadership and the overall direction of the Institute’s Board, we were able to ensure that
financial resources were utilized efficiently and effectively for optimum result. Despite the many
challenges brought about by economic constraints, the Institute nevertheless continued to discharge its

mandate of training, research and outreach programmes.

HIGHLIGHTS OF FY 2021/2022 PERFORMANCE

The Financial Year 2020/2021 started when the country was undergoing a tough time of battling the
COVID-19 pandemic. The academic calendar had been disrupted and learning institutions closed. This
meant that Technical Institutions could not have their July 2020 exams as scheduled. These exams were
later administered in January/February 2021. The May 2020 intake, normally reserved for Business
courses, and September 2020 intake could not take place due to the disrupted academic calendar. This
affected the student population as had been projected.

The government has been very supportive to the TVET institutions. This was done by introducing a fees
ofKsh. 56,420/= for all students in technical institutions.

Of this, the government pays capitation of Ksh. 30,000/= p.a. to all new and continuing students
inTechnical Training Institutions. That leaves the students with a balance of Ksh. 26,420/= to pay, of

which the needy cases may apply for loans and bursaries through HELB.

xii
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Students Enrolment

The FY 2020/2021 had challenges of closure of learning institutions occasioned by the outbreak of
COVID-19 Pandemic, which affected many aspects of the Kenyan economy. Many parents/ guardians
lost their jobs, businesses were disrupted and consequently lost their sources of livelihoods. The closure
of learning institutions took a long time from March 2020 to 26™ October 2020.

This meant that the institution did not have the May 2020 and September 2020 intake, hence affecting our
overall population. However, there was an intake in February 2021 where 1308 new students joined the
institute and 455 in the May 2021 intake. This increased the student enrolment to 3585.

During the financial year under review, 2020/2021, the institute developed and delivered on the following
targets:

a) Despite the suspension of co-curricular activities for the period when learning institutions had
been closed, we managed to participate in regional athletics competitions where we emerged
position 1 out of the 10 institutions that participated.

b) We were awarded 39 medals out of a team of 39 participants that we presented for the
competition.

¢) Its under the same period that we acquired several computers for our ICT workshops.

d) Under the same year, the community around the institute managed to increase
studentsaccommodation spaces from 4,000 to 4,500.

e) We also trained staff on online content development.

Projects Undertaken
During the Financial Year under review:-
% Construction of phase three of the Library block (3"floor)

* Acquired a 16 seat staff van registration number KDA 275P
“ Continued equipping of the gymnasium

In our contribution to the Big 4 Agenda, we held three medical camps in support of Affordable Health
Care where we offered screening and sensitization on Non-Communicable Diseases (cancer, BMIL, Blood
Pressure) and HIV/AIDS. We also offered capacity building in baking and food processing where we
trained 40 members of the society. We also attached 22 youths within the Institute, conducted staff

training on AUTOCAD, Multi-media applications, §S09001:2015 and 1S027001:2013 implementers’
course.

I believe that our graduates undergo the best training that equips them with the necessary skills that
strategically aligns them with opportunities within the country, regionally and globally; while at the same
Xiti
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time contributing to the realization of the Big 4 Agenda: (Health, Manufacturing, Affordable Housing and
Food Security).

MichukiTechnical Training Institute being a Tertiary institution desires to enhance its visibility,
performance, and competitiveness in the tertiary education sector in the face of stiff competition. To do
so, the Institute requires a lot of support from the Government and other stakeholders in this crucial

transitional stage to a National polytechnic in terms of funding, material support and other contributions.

On behalf of the Institute Board of Governor and the top management, I take this opportunity to thank the
Government for its unequivocal support during the year under review.l also appreciate the financial,
material and moral support of stakeholders, collaborators, partners and friends during the year. It is
because of the understanding and guidance of the Chairman of the Board as well as the cooperation of the
Management team, all staff and our trainees that we ended the year within an environment of peace and

stability. I wish to register my sincere gratitude to them all.

I look forward to their continued support in the new financial year 2021/2022 and the years ahead.

Signed by

4

John G Ndirangu
Principal/BOG Sec

Xiv
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MICHUKI TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 30™ JUNE 2021

VIL

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

During FY 2020/2021, there was 98% eligible attendance at all meetings of the Board.

The following table shows the number of meetings held during 2020/2021, the attendance of each

Member;
17 July [14%t0 | 147 Apr | 307 30" Total
2020 16™0ct | 2021 April | June meetings
2020 2021 2021 attended
Silas GithenjiMuguongo Present Present | Present | Present | Present |5/5
(BOG Chairperson)
John G Ndirangu (Principal) | Present Absent | Present | Present | Present | 4/5
Simon NjorogeDeputy Present Absent | Present | Present | Present |4/5
Principal Adm)
Mercy Kamau (Deputy Present Absent | Absent | Absent | Absent |1/5
Principal Ac)
Dr James O Present Present | Present | Present | Present | 5/5
Gichana(Member)
Veronicah W Maina Present Absent | Absent | Absent | Absent |2/5
Member)
Dr.KiptumKibet Charles Present Present | Present | Present |Present | 5/5
(Member)
George Okoth(Member) Present Present | Present | Present | Present | 5/5
Joseph N Mwangi Present Present | Present | Present | Present |5/5
(Member)
Eng. Wilson K Present Present | Present | Present | Present |5/5
Bett(Member)
Charles Nyota(TVET Present Present | Present | Present | Present | 5/5
Director)
NOTE

1) There was 1 inauguration meeting and 4 full board meetings
2) No board charter exists at the moment.
3) Succession plan is after 3 years.

On Board of Governors appointment and tenure of office, removal, the process starts from:-

1) Establishing the expiry of the current Board of office (6 months before its term of office comes to
an end.
2) Then a committee is constituted to nominate a new BOG. This panel is chaired by the County
Director TVET. Other members to the nomination panel are:-
(i) Principal
(ii) County Commissioner to represent GOK.
(i1i) Sponsor incase the Institution is sponsor.
(iv) The Area M.P or his Representative.
The above committee nominates a maximum of 21 members, 3 per category as prescribed in the
areas of specialization and then the list is sent to the Ministry for verification and appointment of a
BOG.
The BOG is normally appointed for a term of 3 years, after which to ensure continuity of the
Institutional memory 1/3 of the past members are retained.
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MICHUKI TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 30™ JUNE 2021

REMOVAL OF BOG MEMBER/MEMBERS

A Board member may be removed for the following reasons:-

(1) Failing to attend 3 consecutive meetings without a valid reason.
(2) Major conflict of Interest

(3) By tendering his resignation to the appointing authority.

(4) Failing to take up his position as an appointed BOG.

(5) Being declared Bankrupt by a Court of law.

RULES AND FUNCTION OF BOARD OF GOVERNORS

The Board of Governors is normally appointed for a term of 3 years after which the Board expires.

However, in constituting a new BOG a 1/3 of the members are retained for the sole purpose of

Institution memory.

The role and function of the Board of Governors are therefore:-

1) Attend to all scheduled BOG meetings.

2) Discuss and formulate institutional policies on staff recruitment and promotion.

3) Identify in consultation with the Principal the recruitment of all PSC trainersand BOG
employees and therefore recruit them.

4) Reprimand or recommend for interdiction of non performing PSC & BOGEmployees.

5) Formulate policies on revenue generation, utility and account for it to the Public through the
Auditor General.

6) Link with all relevant ministries, agents and stakeholders to promote theimporting of relevant
and technological skills.

7)  Link with industries for the purpose of attaching the students.

8) Maintaining proper inventory of its property and assets through aRegister/inventory.

9) Performing supervision role or oversight role on the management of the Institution and advising
appropriately.

10) Maintaining a motivated workforce as well as a secure environment to work in.

INDUCTION OF THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS

Once a BOG has been appointed, it's the responsibility of the Principal to liaise with the County
Director and the Ministry to ensure that the BOG is inaugurated and inducted on its core mandate.
In conjunction with the Principal and the Ministry, the Board is supposed to be trained on the
current trends in the training, Industry to make it relevant and vibrant.

BOARD OF GOVERNORS REMURATION

The Board of Governors are paid some sitting allowances and other allowances depending on the

strength or financial ability of the Institution to sustain the payments. It’s purely based on realistic
and affordable rates. '

The payments also vary from Institution to another base on their financial resources.
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MICHUKI TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 30™ JUNE 2021

/. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Michuki Technical Training Institute operational and financial performance

As a key driver to the attainment of the BIG 4 agenda Michuki TTI offers the best courses that are
streamlined to address the technical needs of the economy; and available business opportunities for global
competitiveness. The Institutehas developed world class infrastructure and facilities and strives to
improve so as to provide quality technical education.

Operational and financial Performance

During the year ended June 2021, the Institution had 3585 students compared to 3308 in year 2019/2020.
The increased number of students resulted in improved revenue.Enrollment for the institute is as below:-

ENROLLMENT

4000

3500

3000

2500 -

2000 4
o B ENROLLMENT

1500 -

1000 ~

500 -

S |

2018-2019 FY 2015-2020 FY 2020-2021 FY

Michuki TTI is experiencing tremendous growth and the management is vigorously pursuing additional
funding and technical support from Government agencies and development partners. In the Institution
level, program-based budgeting is effective as financial control. This serves to ensure that the Institution
allocates resources based on planned and prioritized activity. This means that the cost of each activity will
be traced to the product or service as per the Institution plan.To further enhance service delivery through
effective financial management, the Institute will concentrate on eliminating wastages.

In this regard, the Institution will lobby and mobilize financial resources for Technical Training,
innovation and creativity.
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MICHUKI TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 30™ JUNE 2021

- Michuki Technical Training Institution has been submitting the monthly statutory deductions on the due date.

i.  Government Funding

During the financial year 2020/2021, the operations of the institution both current and development were
done effectively although the fourth quarter was received on 30" June 2021.

ii.  Student fees

The closure of institution on March by the Government due to the COVID Pandemic affected the fees
expected from the parents on the first and second quarter since the students were at home.

T 1-". ! ..-H"r.:..i'_ : 7 -”I-ﬁ-*-;-. TR
Vi mm« equil -3.@131};« DL o

They include
- HEL B loan recoveries
- NIT A contributions
- KRAPAYE & Withholding taxes
- NSSF

- NHIF |

The mr:mre does not have any improb:g! and governance issues
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MICHUKI TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 30™ JUNE 2021

IX. ENVIRONMENTAL AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING

Michuki Technical Training Institute exists to transform lives. This is our purpose; the driving force
behind everything that we do. It's what guides us to deliver our strategy: putting the customer/Citizen
first, delivering relevant goods and services, and improving operational excellence. Below is a brief
highlight of our achievements in each pillar

a. Sustainability strategy and profile -
The triple Bottom Line concepts analyses the sustainability of an organization based on three concepts:

Profits, people (social) and Planet (environment).

Profit:The institute has benefited greatly through the financial Support received from national
government through NGCDF, NGAAF, HELB, grants and capitation. This has led to improved and
expanded infrastructure thus resulting in increased student enrolment.

Social:Devolution system of Government has contributed to the increased demand for skills at the county
level hence increased student enrolment. This has a direct positive impact to the community around the
institution.

Environment:The Board of governance has plans to undertake an environmental sustainability audit and
develop an environmental policy to address the issues of environmental sustainability that will be
identified during the audit.

Description of effect’ " {508 Action to'mitigate !

Category Issue(s)

Political Favourable ¥ Increased student » Surveillance and
Political situation enrolment intelligence on potential
» Conducive learning risks
environment
Devolution system | » Demand for skills at the » Lobby/ Create linkages
of Government county level hence with the County
increased student Governments.
enrolment
Financial Support » Improved and expanded Prudent use of
from national infrastructure government funds
government » Increased students Accountability in the use
through NGCDF, enrolment of available resources
NGAAF, HELB,
grants and
capitation.

b.Environmental performance

Environmental/

» Proper waste management

Overcrowded » Ineffective imparting of

Ecological classes and skills system
workshops » Increased waste > Expansion of physical
pollution infrastructure
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Inadequate / » Water borne diseases » Water harvesting
unreliable supply ¥ Negatively affecting ¥ Drilling of borehole
of water operations in the

Institute
Environment free ¥ Favourable working / » Continually initiate
from air and noise learning conditions environmental conservation
pollution initiatives

¢. Employee welfare

At Michuki Technical Training Institute, we integrate the principles of social responsibility into our core
mandate internally by exhibiting the behaviors of good corporate governance, ethical decision making,
and providing our personnel with opportunities to develop and excel. We also seek to minimize our

environmental impact and seek to enhance the amenity of residential communities.

We value our employees who are directly or indirectly involved in training of our students and contribute
to their potential to bring positive social and environmental change. We value the contribution that

individuals and external entities make to our Institute through community consultation process.

The Institutes Human Resource Manual guides on hiring and appraisal of the staff. Staff training and
development has been factored in the annual budget to ensure that our staff are trained and equipped in

regard to emerging issues.

d. Market place practices
Responsible Supply Chain and Supplier relations

As per the government policy and Section 227 of The Constitution of Kenya, the institute has ensured that

it complies with procurement regulations.

1. All procurement activities are carried out where Supply Chain ensured that there are sufficient funds
to meet the obligations of the resulting contract and are reflected in the approved budget estimates.
Knowledge of available funds acts as a guide in knowing what to procure and when to procure.

9 The Institute has maintained and continuously updated a list of registered suppliers, contractors and
consultants in various specific categories of goods, works or services according to its procurement

needs.
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Michuki Technical Training Institute ensures that:

i)

vi)

Customers are provided with support when and where required. This entails listening keenly to
suppliers, contractors and consultants and responding appropriately.

Proper communication channels e.g. Telephone lines and emails are open so as to make sure
information is passed across efficiently and effectively between the procurement department and the
suppliers.

When doing procurement planning, the institute has complied with preference and reservation
requirements.

Supply Chain function has ensured timely submission of the suppliers’ invoices to facilitate payment
process by the finance department after delivery of goods, services or works is completed. This helps
in making sure that the payment process is not delayed. Timely payment of suppliers helps in
maintaining a good relationship with the supplier and also avoiding of penalties that may arise from
delayed payment.

Supply Chain also makes follow ups of invoices issued to finance for payment process to ensure
timely payments of suppliers.

The institute participated in the Regional Athletic held at Kagumo Teachers College and emerged
position one (1).

e. Corporate Social Responsibility/ Community Engagements

The Institute carried out various CSR activities during the year under review. These activities include:

Providing tree seedlings

Tree planting within the community shopping centres

Cleaningthe environment amongst others

Provide free dustbins to the community within the county (Kangema and Kiria-ini)

Under the same financial year 2020/2021, the community around the Institute managed to increase
students’accommodation spaces from 4,000 to 4,500,
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X. REPORT OF THE COUNCIL/BOARD OF GOVERNORS

The Board members submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
June 30, 2021 which show the state of the Michuki Technical Training Institute affairs.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the entity to provide Technical, Vocational and Entrepreneurship Training
(TVET) using appropriate technology to empower trainees for individual and national development

Results

The results of the entity for the year ended June 30 are set out on page 1-5.

COUNCIL/BOARDOF GOVERNORS

The members of the Board who served during the year are shown on page v-vii. During the year 2020-
2021one of the Board member Veronicah Maina passed away on 9™ June 2021.

Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the Michuki Technical Training Institute in
accordance with Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenyaand the Public Audit Act 2015.

By Order of the Board

Insn‘\&ecrem

Datemlc? IlDlL
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XI. STATEMENT OF BOARD OF GOVERNORS/COUNCIL MEMBERS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

Section 81 of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and (section 14 of the State Corporations Act,
and section 29 of schedule 2 of the Technical and Vocational Education and Training Act, 201 3require the
Board membersto prepare financial statements in respect of that Michuki Technical Training Institute,
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the entity at the end of the financial year/period
and the operating results of the entity for that year/period. The Board membersare also required to ensure
that the entity keeps proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial
position of the entity. The Board membersare also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the entify.

The Board membersare responsible for the preparation and presentation of the entity financial statements,
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the entity for and as at the end of the financial year
(period) ended on June 30, 2021. This responsibility includes: (i) maintaining adequate financial
management arrangements and ensuring that these continue to be effective throughout the reporting
period; (i) maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the entity; (iii) designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, and ensuring that they are free
from material misstatements, whether due to error or fraud; (iv) safeguarding the assets of the entity; (v)
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies: and (vi) making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

The Board members accept responsibility for the entity financial statements, which have been prepared
using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, in
conformity with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and in the manner required by
the PFM Act, 2012. The Board members are of the opinion that the entity’s financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of entify s transactions during the financial year ended June 30, 2021, and of the
entityfinancial position as at that date. The Board membersfurther confirm the completeness of the
accounting records maintained for the entity, which have been relied upon in the preparation of the
enfifyfinancial statements as well as the adequacy of the systems of internal financial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the Board membersto indicate that the entify will not remain a going
concern for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement.

Approval of the financial statements

Th]fa financial entity ‘sstatements were approved by the Board on 29" September 2021 and signed on its
behalf by:

Name ﬁ C NS I, Mi{q U

S]gnaturvf:a,i;;"“}\‘kc‘::"1{\\‘1““‘g“‘ﬂ"@ﬁﬂ?j Signature.. Moo nnin

Chairperson of the Board/Council Accounting Officer/Principal
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OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL P.0. Box 30084-00100

I
Enhancing Accountability ReRGIE:

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON MICHUKI TECHNICAL TRAINING
INSTITUTE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2021

PREAMBLE
| draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of Internal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment, and the internal controls developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations, and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Qualified Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of Michuki Technical Training
Institute set out on pages 1 to 35, which comprise the statement of financial position as
at 30 June, 2021, and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in
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net assets, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of budget and actual
amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the
Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. | have obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

In my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Michuki Technical Training Institute as at
30 June, 2021, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended,
in accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and
comply with the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Technical and Vocational
Education and Training Act, 2013.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1.0 Inaccuracies in the Financial Statements

1.1 Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects a final budgeted
deficit of Kshs.239,492,000. However, the computed deficit is nil.

In the circumstances, the accuracy of the statement of comparison of budget and actual
amounts could not be confirmed.

1.2 Government Grants Transferred to Mentored Institutions

The statement of financial performance reflects Kshs.17,874,165 in respect of
Government grants transferred to mentored institutions. However, the corresponding
explanatory Note 14 to the financial statements reflects nil transfers.

In the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of Kshs. 17,874,165 reflected as
government grants transferred to mentored institutions could not be confirmed.

2.0 Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions

The statement of financial performance and Note 6 to the financial statements reflect
Kshs.139,664,165 in respect of revenue from non-exchange transactions. However,
included in the amount is capitation grant of Kshs.6,254,998 relating to a vocational centre
whose supporting documents were not provided for audit verification.

In the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the revenue of Kshs.6,254,998
from non-exchange transactions could not be confirmed.

3.0 Revenue from Exchange Transactions

The statement of financial performance and Note 7 to the financial statements reflect
Kshs.60,363,537 in respect of revenue from exchange transactions. However, supporting
documents for the amount were not provided for audit verification.
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In the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the revenue of Kshs.60,363,537
from exchange transactions could not be confirmed.

4.0 Cash and Cash Equivalents

The statement of financial position and Note 17 to the financial statements reflect cash
and cash equivalents balance of Kshs.160,849,340. However, as previously reported,
review of bank reconciliation statements revealed that direct deposits totaling to
Kshs.14,975,425 relating to three (3) bank accounts had not been receipted in the
cashbook. Further, unpresented cheques totaling to Kshs.7,053,579 for one (1) bank
account had not been reversed in the cash book contrary to Regulation 90(3) of the Public
Finance Management (National Government) Regulations, 2015, which requires
Accounting Officers to ensure any discrepancies noted during bank reconciliation
exercise, are investigated immediately and appropriate action taken including updating
the relevant cash books.

In the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the cash and cash equivalents
balance of Kshs.160,849,340 could not be confirmed.

5.0 Property, Plant and Equipment

The statement of financial position and Note 20 to the financial statements reflect a
property, plant and equipment balance of Kshs.627,699,033 that includes land with a net
book value of Kshs.42,100,000. However, as previously reported, the land ownership
documents were not provided. Further, seven (7) vehicles with a net book value of
Kshs.20,246,525 were registered in the name of a high school instead of the Institute.

In the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the property, plant and
equipment balance of Kshs.62,346,525 could not be confirmed.

6.0 Undisclosed Prior Year Audit Matters

The status of the progress on follow up of some of the prior year auditor's
recommendations was not provided in the financial statements as required by the Public
Sector Accounting Standards Board (PSASB).

In the circumstances, the Institute's financial statements do not comply with the financial
reporting guidelines provided by PSASB pursuant to Section 194 of the Public Finance
Management Act, 2012.

The audit was conducted in accordance with International Standards of Supreme Audit
Institutions (ISSAls). | am independent of the Michuki Technical Training Institute
Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. | have fulfilled other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAIl and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. | believe
that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my qualified opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other Matter
Budgetary Control and Performance

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects final receipts budget
and actual receipts on a comparable basis of Kshs.239,492,000 and Kshs.200,543,141
respectively, resulting to an underfunding of Kshs.38,948,859 or 16% of the budget.

Similarly, the institution spent Kshs.217,522,631 against approved budget of
Kshs.239,492,000 resulting to an under-expenditure of Kshs.21,969,369 or 9% of the
budget.

The underfunding and underperformance affected the planned activities and may have
impacted negatively on service delivery to the stakeholders of the Institute.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matter described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness and
Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, | confirm that, nothing else
has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

Non-Compliance with Law on Ethnic Composition

The Institute had one hundred and fifty-eight (158) staff members of whom one hundred
and seventeen (117) or 74% were from the dominant ethnic community. Further, the
Board of Governors of the Institute comprise of seven (7) board members of whom three
(3) or 43% were from the dominant ethnic community. This is contrary to Section 7(2) of
the National Cohesion and Integration Act, 2008 which provides that no public
establishment shall have more than one third of its staff from the same ethnic community.

In the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that |
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.
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REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, | confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to
believe that internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that | plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and overall governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. | believe that the audit evidence | have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Governors

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal control as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control, risk management and governance.

In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Institute’s ability to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Institute or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

In addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

The Board of Governors is responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process,
reviewing the effectiveness of how the Management monitors compliance with relevant
legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and systems
are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance and risk
management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control environment.

Auditor-General’s Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
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and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
Is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

In addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, | consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the ISSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of noncompliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAls, | exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Institute’s
ability to sustain its services. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am
required to draw attention in the auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Institute to cease to
sustain its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the institute to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Perform such other procedures as | consider necessary in the circumstances.

| communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that are identified during the audit.

| also provide Management with a statement that | have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

CPA , CBS
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

31 August, 2022
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MICHUKI TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 30™ JUNE 2021

XIII. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30™ JUNE 2021

Notes 2020-2021 201972020
Kshs Kshs

Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Transfers from the National Government-grants 6 139,664,165 98,736,253
Total Revenue from non-exchange 139,664,165 98,736,253
transactions
Revenue from exchange transactions
Rendering of services- Fees from students 7 60,363,537 49 416,041
Rental revenue from facilities and equipment 8 291,160 317,000
Other income 9 2,379,577 5,009,394
Revenue from exchange transactions 63,034,274 54,742,435
Total revenue 202,698,439 153,478,688
Expenses
Use of goods and services 10 91,963,083 75,079,536
Employee costs 11 14,446,865 15,866,939
Depreciation and amortization expense 20/33 34,159,638 35,537,143
Repairs and maintenance 13 27,878,064 9,532,635
Government grants transferred to mentored
Jidtibitian 14 17,874,165 23,000,000
Other expenses 959,678
Other transfers to mentored Institutions 15 5,099,847
Impairment loss 16 33,210,012
BOG Emoluments 32 3,312,300
Total expenses 189,634,115 198,285,790
Net (deficit)/surplus for the year 13,064,324 (44,807,102)
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MICHUKI TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL
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XIV. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITIONAS AT 30™ JUNE 2021

*Restated
Notes 2020/2021 2019/2020
Kshs Kshs
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 13 160,849,340 82,323,794
Receivables from exchange transactions 18 14,650,658 107,097,823 %+
Total Current Assets 175,499,998 189,421,617
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 20 627.699.033 584,016,974
Intagible Assets 33 2,787,930
Bit}lngical assets 19 650,000 650,000
631,136,963 584,666,974
Total assets 806,636,961 774,088,591
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade a{ld other payables from exchange 1 18,062,835 1,323,789
fransactions
Payable to mentored institution 2,745,000
Total Current Liabilities 20,807,835
Total liabilities 20,807,835 1,323,789
Reserves
Capital reserve 566,714,000 566,714,000
Accumulated surplus 137,067,597 124,003,273**
Valuation reserve 81,597,529 81,597,529
Fair value adjustment 450,000 450,000
Total Capital and Reserves 785,829,126 772,764,802
Total Liabilities and Capital & Reserves 806,636,961 774,088,591

The Financial Statements set out on pages 1-5 were signed on behalf of the Institute Council/ Board of

Governors by:
Note: **Restated for FY 2019/2020

Chairman of Council/Board of Governors

Date..ﬂ@;.@ll.a@ﬂl

Finance Officer
ICPAK No22979

Date. 06107300,

Principal

Date. 0697|300



MICHUKI TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEME)
ON 30™ JUNE 2021

XV. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSET FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30™ JUNE 2021

Not RevaI::;iE Accumulated Capital F:
e : surplus reserves | adjustmen
Balance c/d as at June 30, 2019 - 75,969,875 524,614,000
Balances as at 1% July, 2019 - 75,969,875 524,614,000
Additional c_apltal reserve (land 42,100,000
at market price)
Revaluation reserve 81,597,529 -
Fair value gain
Surplus for the year - | (44,807,102) -
Balance c¢/d as at June 30,
2020 as previously stated 81,597,529 31,162,773 566,714,000
Prior year adjustment
NYS receivables 92,840,500
Balance ¢/d as at June 30,
2020 asrestated 81,597,529 | 124,003,273 566,714,000
Surplus for the year - 13,064,324
i 81,597,520 | 137,067,507 | 566,714,000
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XVI. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30" JUNE 2021
2020/2021 2019/2020
Note Kshs Kshs
Cashflows from operating activities
Receipts
Transfers from other Government entities/Govt. 6
grants 139,664,165 98,736,253
Renderingofservices- Fees from students 7 60,363,537 40,376,641
Rental revenue from facilities and equipment " e 317,000
Other income 9 2,379,577 5,009,394
Exam accounts:NITA 1,148,595
Exam accounts: KASNEB 749,000
Exam accounts:KNEC 25,552,720
Examinations 21 15,718,867
Prepaid fees 1,636,659 1,896,245
Debts recovered during the year 92,840,500 71,951,173
Total Receipts 312,894,465 | 245,737,021
Payments :
Use of goods and services 10 91,963,083 15,866,939
Employee costs 11 14,446,865 75,079,536
Repair and maintenance 5 idke e 9,532,635
Grants transferred to other institution i LA EaR RO 23,000,000
32 3,312,300
BOG Emoluments
General expenses 959,678
Exam:NITA 1,148,595
Exam accounts:KASNEB 749,000
Exam accounts:KNEC 25,552,720
Examination 21 1,903,381
Transferred to Tetu Tve 3,102,368
Transferred to Kandara Tve 2,419,783
Other prior year liabilities paid during the year 2,228,561
Prepaid fees refund 31 2,250,567.00 749,051
Advance to staff 85,000
Total Payments 156,883,425 160,473,866
Net cashflows from operatingactivities 156,011,040 85,263,155
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Cash flows from investing activities '
Purchase of property, plant, equipment and intangible assets 77,485,494 31,610,149
Proceeds from sale of property,plantand Equipment
Decrease in non-current receivables

'l_m:rease ininvestments

Net cash flows used in investing activities 77,485,494 31,610,149

Cashflows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings

Increase in deposits

Net cash flows used in financing activities -
Net(decrease)in cash and cash equivalents 78,525,546 53,653,006
Cash and cash equivalentsat] July 2020 T 82,323,794.00 28,670,788

Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June 2021 160,849,340.00 82,323,794
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MICHUKI TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 30™ JUNE 2021

Notes to the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts

a. Transfers from other Government enfities &Government grants (6%)

In the financial year 2020-2021 the institute received Funding from the Ministry for capitation
but did not receive funds for development.

b. Rendering of services (5%)
The year under review the institute received fees from students
. Rental revenue (7%)

The year under review some of the house( Kitchen ) had no occupants because there were no
student on the institute and there was approval for non payment for several months

d. Other income (59%)
During the year under review there was no income from other services rendered by the
institution due to COVID 19

e. Employee cost (37%)

The employee cost was unfavourable because trainers employed by the Board were terminated
due to COVID 19

f. Use of Good(16%)

During the year there were no much expenses for training and learning materials since student
were affected due COVID 19

g. Repair and maintenance (-71%)
Due to COVID 19 which lead to closure of institution which in turn led the Minister of
Education to carry out inspection of readiness to resume learning .The Minister inspected the
institution and directed that the institution blocks to be tiled , the management responded and in
return there was maintenance that took place within the period under review

h. Development and project (23%)
The development and the projects are work in progress.
i. Exams Fees

The numbers of the candidates sitting for the exams were few than expected due to
disruption of COVID 19 and change of exams calendar.



MICHUKI TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 30™ JUNE 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

XVIIL
1. GENERAL INFORMATION
Michuki Technical Training Institute is established by and derives its authority and
accountability from TVET Act. The entity is wholly owned by the Government of Kenya
and is domiciled in Kenya. The entity’s principal activity is to provide Technical
Vocational and entrepreneurship Training (TVET).
2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the
measurement at re-valued amounts of certain items of property, plant and equipment,
marketable securities and financial instruments at fair value, impaired assets at their
estimated recoverable amounts and actuarially determined liabilities at their present value.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Public Sector
Accounting Standards (IPSAS) allows the use of estimates and assumptions. It also
requires management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the entity's
accounting policies.The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed
in Notes.

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings, which is
the functional and reporting currency of the entity.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act, the State
Corporations Act, the TVET Act, and International Public Sector Accounting Standards
(IPSAS). The accounting policies adopted have been consistently applied to all the years
presented.



MICHUKI TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 30™ JUNE 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
3.  ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

i. Relevant new standards and amendments to published standards effective for the

year ended 30 June 2021.
Other Applicable: 1*' January 2021:
Improvements a) Amendments to IPSAS 13, to include the appropriate
to [PSAS references to IPSAS on impairment, in place of the current
references to other international and/or national accounting
frameworks.

b) IPSAS 13, Leases and IPSAS 17, Property, Plant, and
Equipment.
Amendments to remove transitional provisions which should
have been deleted when IPSAS 33, First Time Adoption of
Accrual Basis International Public Sector Accounting
Standards (IPSASs) was approved.

¢) IPSAS 21, Impairment of Non-Cash-Generating Assets and
IPSAS 26, Impairment of Cash Generating Assets.
Amendments to ensure consistency of impairment guidance to
account for revalued assets in the scope of IPSAS 17,
Property, Plant, and Equipment and IPSAS 31, Intangible
Assets.

d) IPSAS 33, First-time Adoption of Accrual Basis International
Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSASs).
Amendments to the implementation guidance on deemed cost

in IPSAS 33 to make it consistent with the core principles in
the Standard.




MICHUKI TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 30™ JUNE 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ii. New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective in
the year ended 30 June 2021.

IPSAS 41: Applicable: 1*' January 2023:

Financial The objective of IPSAS 41 is to establish principles for the financial
Instruments reporting of financial assets and liabilities that will present relevant and
useful information to users of financial statements for their assessment of
the amounts, timing and uncertainty of an entity’s future cash flows.
IPSAS 41 provides users of financial statements with more useful
information than IPSAS 29, by:

Applying a single classification and measurement model for financial
assets that considers the characteristics of the asset’s cash flows and the
objective for which the asset is held;

Applying a single forward-looking expected credit loss model that is
applicable to all financial instruments subject to impairment.testing; and

*Applying an improved hedge accounting model that broadens the
hedging arrangements in scope of the guidance. The model develops a
strong link between an entity’s risk management strategies and the
accounting treatment for instruments held as part of the risk management
strategy.

IPSAS 42: Applicable: 1"'January 2023

Social Benefits | The objective of this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful
representativeness and comparability of the information that a reporting
entity provides in its financial statements about social benefits. The
information provided should help users of the financial statements and
general-purpose financial reports assess:

(a) The nature of such social benefits provided by the entity;

(b) The key features of the operation of those social benefit schemes; and
(c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the entity’s financial
performance, financial position and cash flows.

Amendments | Applicable: 1st January 2023:
to Other IPSAS | a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to the

resulting from components of borrowing costs which were inadvertently omitted
IPSAS 41, when IPSAS 41 was issued.

Financial b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples on
Instruments hedging and credit risk which were inadvertently omitted when

IPSAS 41 was issued.

¢) Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for accounting for
financial guarantee contracts which were inadvertently omitted when
IPSAS 41 was issued.

d) Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on classifying
financial instruments on initial adoption of accrual basis IPSAS
which were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued.

iii. Early adoption of standards

The entity did not early — adopt any new or amended standards in year 2021.
10



MICHUKI TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 30™ JUNE 2021

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Revenue recognition

i)

Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Transfers from other government entities

Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other government entities are
measured at fair value and recognized on obtaining control of the asset (cash,
goods, services and property) if the transfer is free from conditions and it is
probable that the economic benefits or service potential related to the asset will
flow to the entity and can be measured reliably. Recurrent grants are recognized in
the statement of comprehensive income. Development/capital grants are
recognized in the statement of financial position and realised in the statement of
comprehensive income over the useful life of the assets that has been acquired
using such funds

Revenue from exchange transactions
Rendering of services

The entity recognizes revenue from rendering of services by reference to the stage
of completion when the outcome of the transaction can be estimated reliably. The
stage of completion is measured by reference to labour hours incurred to date as a
percentage of total estimated labour hours.

Where the contract outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognized
only to the extent that the expenses incurred are recoverable.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, usually on delivery of
the goods and when the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and it is
probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the
transaction will flow to the entity.

Interest income

Interest income is accrued using the effective yield method. The effective yield
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount. The method applies this yield to the
principal outstanding to determine interest income each period.

Dividends

Dividends or similar distributions must be recognized when the shareholder’s or
the entity’s right to receive payments is established.

11



MICHUKI TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 30™ JUNE 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

a)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
ii) Revenue from exchange transactions (continued)
Rental income

Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and included in revenue.

b) Budget information

The original budget for FY 2020/2021 was approved by the Council or Board on 30"
June 2020.Subsequent revisions or additional appropriations were made to the
approved budget in accordance with specific approvals from the appropriate
authorities. The additional appropriations are added to the original budget by the entity
upon receiving the respective approvals in order to conclude the final budget.
Accordingly, the entity did not record additional appropriations on the FY 2020/2021
budget following the Council/ Board’s approval.

The entity’s budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and
expenditure disclosed in the financial statements. The financial statements are prepared
on accrual basis using a classification based on the nature of expenses in the statement
of financial performance, whereas the budget is prepared on a cash basis. The amounts
in the financial statements were recast from the accrual basis to the cash basis and
reclassified by presentation to be on the same basis as the approved budget. A
comparison of budget and actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis to the
approved budget, is then presented in the statement of comparison of budget and actual
amounts.

In addition to the Basis difference, adjustments to amounts in the financial statements
are also made for differences in the formats and classification schemes adopted for the
presentation of the financial statements and the approved budget.

A statement to reconcile the actual amounts on a comparable basis included in the
statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts and the actuals as per the
statement of financial performance has been presented under page 5 of these financial
statements.

Taxes

Current income tax
The entity is exempt from paying taxes as per first schedule of the Income TaxAct.

12
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STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 30™ JUNE 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

c) Taxes (continued)

4

d)

Sales tax/ Value Added Tax
Expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of sales tax, except:

» When the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable
from the taxation authority, in which case, the sales tax is recognized as part of the
cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable,

» When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of sales tax included.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is
included as part of receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.
Investment property

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The
carrying amount includes the replacement cost of components of an existing investment
property at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met and excludes
the costs of day-to-day maintenance of an investment property.

Investment property acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at its fair
value at the date of acquisition. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured using the cost model and are depreciated over a period of SOyears.
Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefit or service potential is expected from its disposal. The difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in
the surplus or deficit in the period of de-recognition.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use.
Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the entity recognizes such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major
inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognized in surplus or deficit as incurred. Where an asset is
acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil or nominal consideration the asset is
initially measured at its fair value,

Freehold land is not depreciated as it is deemed to have an infinite life

The annual depreciation rates of assets in use are as follows:-

Assets Rate (p.a)

Buildings 2%
Furniture, plant and equipment 12.5%
Motor vehicles 25 %
Computers 313 %
Software 20%

Fixed assets are stated at cost or valuation, less aceumulated depreciation -Depreciation is on
reducing balance basis.

13
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STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 30™ JUNE 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
f) Leases

Finance leases are leases that transfer substantially the entire risks and benefits
incidental to ownership of the leased item to the Entity. Assets held under a finance
lease are capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased
property or, if lower, at the present value of the future minimum lease payments. The
Entity also recognizes the associated lease liability at the inception of the lease. The
liability recognized is measured as the present value of the future minimum lease
payments at initial recognition.

Subsequent to initial recognition, lease payments are apportioned between finance
charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized as finance costs
in surplus or deficit.

An asset held under a finance lease is depreciated over the useful life of the asset.
However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Entity will obtain ownership of the
asset by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the
estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating leases are leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits
incidental to ownership of the leased item to the Entity. Operating lease payments are
recognized as an operating expense in surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

g) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the date of
the exchange. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated
intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and
expenditure is reflected in surplus or deficit in the period in which the expenditure is
incurred. The useful life of the intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite

h) Research and development costs

The Entity expenses research costs as incurred. Development costs on an individual
project are recognized as intangible assets when the Entity can demonstrate:
»  The technical feasibility of completing the asset so that the asset will be
available for use or sale

Its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset

How the asset will generate future economic benefits or service potential

L .

The availability of resources to complete the asset
»  The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development.

Following initial recognition of an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the asset begins when
development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortized over the period
of expected future benefit. During the period of development, the asset is tested for

14
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impairment annually with any impairment losses recognized immediately in surplus or
deficit,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

i) Financial instruments

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of IPSAS 29 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement are classified as financial assets at fair value through surplus or
deficit, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments or available-for-sale
financial assets, as appropriate. The Entity determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Loss arising from impairment
are recognized in the surplus or deficit.

Held-to-maturity

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities are classified as held to maturity when the Entity has the positive
intention and ability to hold it to maturity. After initial measurement, held-to-
maturity investments are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in surplus
or deficit.

Impairment of financial assets

The Entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or an entity of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
entity of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event’) and that loss event has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the entity of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
the following indicators:

15
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
i) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

» The debtors or a entity of debtors are experiencing significant financial
difficulty

# Default or delinquency in interest or principal payments

» The probability that debtors will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization

¥ Observable data indicates a measurable decrease in estimated future cash flows
(e.g. changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of IPSAS 29 are classified as financial
liabilities at fair value through surplus or deficit or loans and borrowings, as
appropriate. The Entity determines the classification of its financial liabilities at
initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans
and borrowings, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

Loans and borrowing

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are
recognized in surplus or deficit when the liabilities are derecognized as well as
through the effective interest method amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

i) Inventories

Inventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was
received through non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost
of the inventory is its fair value at the date of acquisition.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are
accounted for, as follows:

» Raw materials: purchase cost using the weighted average cost method

» Finished goods and work in progress: cost of direct materials and labour and a
proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but
excluding borrowing costs

16
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(Continued)

i) Inventories (Continued)

D

After initial recognition, inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. However, to the extent that a class of inventory is distributed or deployed at no
charge or for a nominal charge, that class of inventory is measured at the lower of cost
and current replacement cost.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations,
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale, exchange, or distribution.

Inventories are recognized as an expense when deployed for utilization or consumption
in the ordinary course of operations of the Entity.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Entity has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where the Entity expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example,
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of financial
performance net of any reimbursement.

Contingent liabilities

The Entity does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses details of any
contingencies in the notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential is remote.

Contingent assets

The Entity does not recognize a contingent asset, but discloses details of a possible
asset whose existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Entity in the notes to
the financial statements. Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that
developments are appropriately reflected in the financial statements. If it has become
virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits or service potential will arise and
the asset’s value can be measured reliably, the asset and the related revenue are
recognized in the financial statements of the period in which the change occurs.

17
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
k) Nature and purpose of reserves
The Entity creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific requirements.
I) Changes in accounting policies and estimates

The Entity recognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy retrospectively. The
effects of changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective
application is impractical.

m) Employee benefits

Retirement benefit plans

The Entity provides retirement benefits for its employees and directors. Defined
contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity (a fund), and will have no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay
all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. The
contributions to fund obligations for the payment of retirement benefits are charged
against income in the year in which they become payable.

Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined-
contribution plans. The defined benefit funds are actuarially valued tri-annually on the
projected unit credit method basis. Deficits identified are recovered through lump sum
payments or increased future contributions on proportional basis to all participating
employers. The contributions and lump sum payments reduce the post-employment
benefit obligation.

n) Foreign currency fransactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate of
exchange on the date of the transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in
foreign currency are reported at the statement of financial position reporting date by
applying the exchange rate on that date. Exchange differences arising from the
settlement of creditors, or from the reporting of creditors at rates different from those at
which they were initially recorded during the period, are recognized as income or
expenses in the period in which they arise.

o) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are capitalized against qualifying assets as part of property, plant and
equipment.

Such borrowing costs are capitalized over the period during which the asset is being
acquired or constructed and borrowings have been incurred. Capitalization ceases when
construction of the asset is complete. Further borrowing costs are charged to the
statement of financial performance.

18
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

P)

q)

f)

Related parties

The Entity regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert
control individually or jointly, or to exercise significant influence over the Entity, or
vice versa. Members of key management are regarded as related parties and comprise
the directors, the CEO/principal and senior managers.

Service concession arrangements

The Entity analyses all aspects of service concession arrangements that it enters into in
determining the appropriate accounting treatment and disclosure requirements. In
particular, where a private party contributes an asset to the arrangement, the Entity
recognizes that asset when, and only when, it controls or regulates the services. The
operator must provide together with the asset, to whom it must provide them, and at
what price. In the case of assets other than "whole-of-life’ assets, it controls, through
ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise — any significant residual interest in the
asset at the end of the arrangement. Any assets so recognized are measured at their fair
value. To the extent that an asset has been recognized, the Entity also recognizes a
corresponding liability, adjusted by a cash consideration paid or received.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits
on call and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or Jess,
which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant
risk of changes in value. Bank account balances include amounts held at the Central
Bank of Kenya and at various commercial banks at the end of the financial year. For
the purposes of these financial statements, cash and cash equivalents also include short
term cash imprests and advances to authorised public officers and/or institutions which
were not surrendered or accounted for at the end of the financial year.

Comparative figures

Where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been
amended or reconfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation.

Subsequent events

There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant
impact on the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2021.
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5. SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of the Entity's financial statements in conformity with IPSAS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions. that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below. The Entity based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the
consolidated financial statements were prepared. However, existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising beyond the control of the Entity. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur. IPSAS 1.140

Useful lives and residual values

The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to
inform potential future use and value from disposal:

» The condition of the asset based on the assessment of experts employed by the Entity

¥ The nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and
processes

»  The nature of the processes in which the asset is deployed

¥ Availability of funding to replace the asset

» Changes in the market in relation to the asset

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information
available. Additional disclosure of these estimates of provisions is included in Notes.

Provisions are measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the obligation at the reporting date and are discounted to present value where the
effect is material.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
6. (a)TRANSFERS FROM NATIONAL GOVERNMENT MINISTRIES
During the year under review the institution received funds from the Ministry of Education as

tabulated below; capitation grants was distributed to the students and the other grants were
transferred to the relevant institutions

Unconditional grants

Capitation grants 121,790,000 71,895,000
Operational grant -Tetu 1,500,000 2,000,000
Capitation grant —Tetu 4,025,000

Operational grant -Kandara 1,000,000 1,000,000
Capitation grant —Kandara 6,254,998 -
Capitation grant Mathioya 1,627,500

Conditional grants

Library grant -

Hostels grant -
Administration block grant -
Laboratory grant -

Leaming facilities grant <(Kigumo TVC) 3,466,667 20,000,000
Other organizational grants 3,841,253 |
Total government grants and subsidies 139,664,165 EE,TJﬁ,ZSIﬂ

(b)TRANSFERS FROM MINISTRIES, DEPARTMENTS AND AGENCIES

Ministry/Stat

& Department 139,853,265 - 139,853,265 139,853,265
Ministry

Total 139,853,265 139,853,265 139,853,265

(Ensure that the amount recorded above as having been received from the Ministry fully
reconciles to the amount recorded by the sending Ministry. An acknowledgement
note/receipt should be raised in favour of the sending Ministry, The details of the
reconciliation have been included under appendix iii)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

¥

9.

RENDERING OF SERVICES

Tuition fees 56,074,353 8,199,048
Activity fees 11,756,422 3.356,765
Industrial attachment fees 9,993,115 1,168,870
Administration 22,102,153 5,895,326
Practical 15,796,373 1,277,619
Capacity Building 997,851 410,064
P/Emolument non -teaching staff 11,460,941 2,922 828
Gratuity 1,538,760 628,132
Local transport &travel 9,797,562 3,210,710
Repair and maintenance 5,422,500 1,513,148
Electricity Water &Conservation 10,744,038 3,732,414
Student Welfare 3,074,655 1,263,427
Computer Maintenance 0 780
School fund 0 1,173
Boarding fee 00 734
Development fee 0 31,573
Insurance 1,017,002 424,508
Medical ] 1,127
P/Emolument teaching staff 19,555,467 4,331,626
P/Emolument Casual 2,822,345 1,990,003
P/Emolument 0 16,766
Sub-Total 182,153,537 40,376,641
Receivable from National Youth Service 9,039,400
Less :Capitation (121,790,000)

Total revenue from the rendering of services 60,363,537 49,416,041

This is the revenue from student’s fees which has been guided by student fee

structure to various vote heads.

HIRE OF FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT

House Rent 291,160 317,000
Total 291,160 317,000
Nb :The institute has rental houses and also receive rent from hire of kitchen
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

OTHER INCOME

College ID cards 15,250 500
Hostel fee 811,220 3,974,880
Computer packages 115,205 117,112
Driving Course 1,058,298 557,509
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10.

11.

Driving Truck . 1,667
T-Shirts 1,463 228
Caution - 139
Farm Account 50,527 781
Bus hire 126,850 169,190
Library card 1,234 1,040
_"Miscei!aneous{phutump}f Jprinting &sale 199,530 186,348
of absolute assets)

Total other income 2,379,577 5,009,394

USE OF GOODS AND SERVICES

Teaching and learning materials 7,975,281 11,942,062

Industrial attachment costs 302,400 879,300
Electricity, Water &conservation 9,268,430 5,367,236
Hostel Expenses 165,995 4,300
Pay as you Eat Expenses 13,712,807 7,161,120
Activity &sport 1,119,491 3,015,586
Caution Expenses 58,400 57,000
Student Welfare 1,780,700 276,300
Bursary Expense - 10,000
Nita Expenses 23,550 39,750
Practical materials 20,477,504 12,812,143
Administration cost 31,191,786 29,358,613
Capacity Building expense 1,511,380 508,404
Transport and travelling 655,025 1,725,390
Fuel &gas 1,988,370 1,922,132
Insurance expense 1,112,268
Bank charges 54,362
Sub-Total 75,079,536
Other
Driving course expense 367,531 265,423

| Farm expense 165,403 143,755
Computer package expenses 32,400 120,050
T-shirts expenses - 430,450
Sub-Total 959,678
Total use of goods and services 91,963,083 76,039,214
EMPLOYEE COSTS

P/E teaching staff 6,058,285 8,829,526

P/E Non- teaching staff 5,174,486 5,104,520

| Gratuity 1,494,494 92,593
Casual 1,719,600 1,840,300
| Employee costs 14,446,865 15,866,939
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12. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

Property, plant and equipment 34,159,638 35,537,143
Total depreciation and amortization 34,159,638 35,537,143

13. REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE

Repair and maintenance 27,878,064 9,532,635
Total repairs and maintenance 27,878,064 9,532,635

14. Government grants transferred to mentored institution

Government grant transfer to Kigumo 3,466,667 20,000,000
Government grant transfer to Tetu 5,525,000 2,000,000
Government grant transfer to Kandara 7,254,998 1,000,000
Government grant transfer to Mathioya 1,627,500

Total 17,874,165 23,000,000

15. Other transfers to mentored institution

Opening bank balance transferred 5,099,847
Total grants and subsidies - 5,099,847

16. IMPAIRMENT LOSS

Equipment and machinery

Cost of Equipment 157,000,000
Less value after valuation (104,164,988)
Reversal of Depreciation (19,625,000)
Impairment loss 33,210,012
Total impairment loss - 33,210,012

17. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Amica saving&credit 2,155,197 27,274
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Equity Bank 50,569,741 1,741,276
KCB Current Account 05,686,307 68,113,600
KCB Saving Account 12,437,579 12,440,774
Cash at Hand 516 870
Total cashand cash equivalents 160,849,340 82,323,794

17(a).DETAILED ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Current account

Amica saving &credit 005109000000030 2,155,197 27.274
Equity Bank 0030298366348 50,569,741 1,741,276
KCB Current Account 1107220416 95,686,307 68,113,600
KCB Saving Account 1106617541 12,437,579 12,440,774
Cash at Hand 516 870

Grand total 160,849,340 82,323,794

18. RECEIVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

C

urrent receivables
Student debtors 2,971,894 73,776
Receivable from National Youth Service 9,039,400 101,879,900
Receivable from TetuTvc 2,639,364 2,639,364
Receivable from KandaraTve - 2,419,?3?
| Salary Advance - 85,000
Total current receivables 14,650,658 107,097,823
18. a.National Youth Service Receivable movement
At the start of year 101,879,900 71,568,544
Additions during the year: April 2020 - 46,890,100
June 2020 40,901,600
Total 159,360,244
Payment during the year: (51,938,900) (10,839,654)
: (40,901,600) (46,640,700)
At the end of the year 9,039,400 101,879,900
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19.

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

At the start of year 200,000
Addition -
Fair Value gain 450,000
At the end of year 650,000 650,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Valuation

Land and buildings were valued by ICON Valuers an independent valuer on 22™ June 2020 on
market Value basis of valuation. These amounts were adopted on 30™ June 2020.

20 (b) Property, Plant and Equipment at Cost

If the freehold land, buildings and other assets were stated on the historical cost basis the amounts
would be as follows:

Land

Buildings 359,340,512 15,798,649 | 343,541,863

Plant and machinery 157,827,810 24,517,146 | 133,310,664

Motor vehicles, including motorcycles 34,333,646 14,237,122 | 20,096,525

Computers and related equipment 13,460,897 5,797,022 7,663,875

Office equipment, furniture, and fittings 20,964,994 6,415,987 | 14,549,007
 Total 585,927,859 66,765,926 | 519,161,934

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

T

rade payables -
Fees paid in advance 1,636,659 1,147,194
Prepaid NITA exam fee 176,595
Payable to Examination bodies 13.815.486
Payable to contractors 2.610.690
Payable to mentees
Payable to Tetu Tvc 1,117,500
Payable to Mathioya Tvc 1,627,500
Total trade and other payables 20,807,835 1,323,789

29



MICHUKI TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 30™ JUNE 2021

21 b Examination

KNEC exam fees 13,582,957
KASNEB exam fees 611,826
NITA exam fees 1,524,084
15,718,867

KMNEC exams Expense 929,520
KASNEB exam Expense 502,800
NITA Exam Expense 471,061
1,903,381

Total 13,815,486

22. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS

Prior year adjustments related to the following:
i. Understatement of brought forward NYS debtors by KES. 21,271,956
ii. Reversal of the wrong entry that was meant to clear brought forward NYS debtors
amounting to 71,568,544. The entry that was supposed to be passed is credit NYS
debtors and debit cashbook for the bank account where the funds were transferred, but
instead, the wrong entry passed was Debiting tuition income and crediting NYS debtors.
Since the amount paid by NYS were recognised in the books in Year 2020/2021, then the
total NYS debt was supposed to form part of the Institute receivables as at 30" June 2020.
Analysis of the entries

i Understated prior year NYS debtors

Total NYS receivables per the invoices as at 30" June 2020 101,879,900
Less: Amount recorded as NYS debtors in the books as at 30" (80,607,944)
June 2020 (9,039,400 +71,568,544)

Total understatement 21,271,956

Prior year adjustment passed:

Dr. 2019/2020 Debtors by 21,271,956

Cr. Accumulated surpluses as at 30 June 2020
ii. Wrong entry to 2019/2020 income

Income for the year ended 2019/2020 was understated by 71,568,544
Prior year adjustment passed:

Dr. 2019/2020 Debtors by 71,568,544

Cr. Accumulated surpluses as at 30 June 2020 by 71,568,544

Therefore, the total funds received from NYS amounting to KES 92,840,500 were recognised in the
cashbook in the year 2020/2021 and the entries are as follows: DR. cash book and CR NYS debtors.

Effects to accumulated surpluses

Accumulated surpluses for year 2019/2020 as per the audited 31,162,773
accounts

Prior year adjustments:
Add: NYS income not booked 21,271,956
Add: Prior year income understatement 71,568,544
Total adjustments 92,840,500 92,840,500
Restated accumulated surpluses as at 30" June 2020 124,003,273
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23. OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations

Surplus for the year 2,359,500 (44,807,102)
Prior year adjustment to income 02,840,500
Adjustedfor:

DAt 32,926,382 35,537,143
Impairment loss i 33,210,012
Working Capital adjustments

(Increase) in receivables 92,447,166 (26924081)
Decrease in payables 3,057,870 (4593317)
Net cash flow from operating activities 130,790,918 85,263,155

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The entity’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and liquidity risks
and effects of changes in foreign currency. The company’s overall risk management
programme focuses on unpredictability of changes in the business environment and seeks to
minimise the potential adverse effect of such risks on its performance by setting acceptable
levels of risk. The company does not hedge any risks and has in place policies to ensure that
credit is only extended to customers with an established credit history.

The entity’s financial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below:
(i) Credit risk

The entity has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to
pay amounts in full when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and
deposits with banks, as well as trade and other receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments.

Management assesses the credit quality of each customer, taking into account its financial
position, past experience and other factors, Individual risk limits are set based on internal or
external assessment in accordance with limits set by the directors, The amounts presented in
the statement of financial position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated
by the company’s management based on prior experience and their assessment of the
current economic environment.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements representing

the entity’s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any
collateral obtained is made up as follows:
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Receivables from exchange 107,097,823

transactions 107,097,823
Receivables from non exchange -

transactions -
Bank balances 82,322,924 | 82,322,924
Total 189,421,617 | 189,421,617
At 30 June 2021

Receivables from exchange 14,650,658 | 14,650,658
transactions

Receivables from non exchange - -
transactions

Bank balances 160,849,340 | 160,849,340
Total 175,499,998 | 175,499,998

24, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(i} Credit risk (continued)

The customers under the fully performing category are paying their debts as they continue
trading. The credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal and the allowance for
uncollectible amounts that the company has recognised in the financial statements is
considered adequate to cover any potentially irrecoverable amounts.

The entity has no significant concentration of credit risk on amounts

The board of directors sets the company’s credit policies and objectives and lays down
parameters within which the various aspects of credit risk management are operated.

(ii) Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the entity’s directors, who
have built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the
entity’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The
entity manages liquidity risk through continuous monitoring of forecasts and actual cash
flows.

The table below represents cash flows payable by the company under non-derivative
financial liabilities by their remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due
within 12 months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not
significant.
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At 30 June 2020

Trade payables - - - -
Prepaid fee - 57,652 1,266,137 | 1,323,789
Total = 57,652 1,266,137 | 1,323,789
At 30 June 2021

Payables to Tetu&Mathioya 2,745,000 - - | 2,745,000
Prepaid fee - 1,636,659 - | 1,636,659
Total 2,745,000 1,636,659 - | 4,381,659 |

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
24, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(iii) Market risk
The entity has put in place an internal audit function to assist it in assessing the risk faced
by the entity on an ongoing basis, evaluate and test the design and effectiveness of its
internal accounting and operational controls.

Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity
prices and foreign exchange rates which will affect the entity’s income or the value of its
holding of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage
and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the
return. Overall responsibility for managing market risk rests with the Audit and Risk
Management Committee.

The entity’s Finance Department is responsible for the development of detailed risk
management policies (subject to review and approval by Audit and Risk Management
Committee) and for the day to day implementation of those policies.

There has been no change to the entity’s exposure to market risks or the manner in which jt
manages and measures the risk.

25. RELATED PARTY BALANCES
Nature of related party relationships
Entities and other parties related to the entity include those parties who have ability to exercise
control or exercise significant influence over its operating and financial decisions. Related
parties include management personnel, their associates and close family members.
Government of Kenya
The Government of Kenya is the principal shareholder of the entity, holding 100% of the
entify’s equity interest. The Government of Kenya has provided full guarantees to all long-term
lenders of the entity, both domestic and external, Other related parties include:

i) The National Government:
ii) The Parent Ministry;

iii)  Students

iv)  Parents/Guardians/ Sponsors
v) Community
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vi) Government

vii)  Staff

viii)  External Providers (Suppliers)
ix) Key management;

x) Board of Governors ;

The transactions and balances with related parties during the year are as

a) Grants /Transfers from the Government

Capitation

139,853,265

98,736,253

139,853,265

98,736,253

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

26. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The institution operates only in one geographical regions or in departments, and thus IPSAS
18 on segmental reporting requires an entity to present segmental information of each
geographic region or department to enable users understand the entity’s performance and
allocation of resources to different segments does not apply.

27. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Authorised for construction of hostel 91,210
3" floor Library block 4,250,916
Staff quarter 31,712,410
Total 36,054,536

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

28. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period.

29. ULTIMATE AND HOLDING ENTITY

The entity is a State Corporation/ or a Semi- Autonomous Government Agency under the

Ministry of Education. Its ultimate parent is the Government of Kenya.

30. CURRENCY

The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs).

31.

Prepaid Fees refund
Prepaid fees refund

2,250,567
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32. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

BOG Emoluments 3,312,300

| Total director emoluments 3,312,300

33. Intangible Assets

ERP 3,484,913
Depreciation 696,683
Net Amount 2,787,930

NB: Depreciation has been based on 20%

APPENDIX 1: PROGRESS ON FOLLOW UP OF AUDITOR RECOMMENDATIONS

The following is the summary of issues raised by the external auditor, and management comments
that were provided to the auditor.

The management

Lack of audit recruited the internal
committee and auditor to enable the Resolved -
internal audit audit committee became
functional
LOC12/4/138 is held in
Lack of
ownership trust by Muranga county

government and the

gﬁ:upn;?géls ;?r management have Not Resolved | June 2022
land initiated the process of

acquiring title deed

Accounting Officer
Name John G Ndirangu

Michuki Technical Training Institute

Signature.. ﬁ .................
-

......................................
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APPENDIX II: PROJECTS IMPLEMENTED BY THE ENTITY

Projects

Projects implemented by the institute Funded by A-A

Status of Projects completion

CONSTRUCTION
OF PERIMETER
WALL PHASE 2

4,502,540

4,949,528

100%

4,000,000

4,949,528

CONSTRUCTION
OF STAFF
QUARTERS

5,423,675

5,332,465

80%

8,000,000

5,423,675

A-A

CONSTRUCTION
OF 3*® FLOOR
TO THE
LIBRARY
BLOCK

11,028,630

6,777,714

100%

20,000,000

11,028,630

A-A

COMPLETION
OF ELECTRICAL
AND
ELECTRONIC
BLOCK

10,875,700

11,223,615

100%

10,000,000

11,223,615

PROPOSED
CONSTRUCTION
OF HOSTEL
BLOCK

36,436,610

4,724,200

0%

40,000,000

36,436,610

A-A

PURCHASE OF
STAFF UTILITY
VEHICLE

4,570,000

4,530,526.21

100%

5,000,000

4,530,526.21

DRILLING &
EQUIPPING OF
BOREHOLE

4,050,300

3,980,466

100%

4,000,000

3,980,466
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APPENDIX III: INTER-ENTITY TRANSFERS

Institute

Break down of Transfers from the State Department of Michuki Technical Training

FY 2020-2021

a. | Recurrent Grants

Bank Statement
Date

Amount (KShs)

Indicate the FY to which
the amounts relate

KandaraTvc 9/11/2020 500,000 2020-2021 FY
TetuTve 2/12/2020 500,000 2020-2021 FY
TetuTve 19/02/2021 500,000 2020-2021 FY
KandaraTvc 30/3/2021 500,000 2020-2021 FY
TetuTve 7/4/2021 500,000 2020-2021 FY
Total 2,500,000
Transferred (2,500,0000)

b. | Development Grants

Bank Statement
Date

Amount (KShs)

Indicate the FY to which
the amounts relate

Kigumo TVC 09/09/2020 3,466,667 2020-2021 FY

Total 3,466,667

Transferred (3,466,667)

¢. | Capitation Grants

Bank Statement | Amount (KShs) Indicate the FY to which

Date the amounts relate
Michuki TTI 03/07/2020 22,942 500 2019-2020 FY
Michuki TTI 6/11/2020 22,747,500 2020-2021 FY
TetuTwve 9/11/2020 810,000 2020-2021 FY
Michuki TTI 16/02/2021 22,747,500 2020-2021 FY
TetuTve 16/02/2021 810,000 2020-2021 FY

|| Michuki TTI 17/02/2021 810,000 2020-2021 FY

Michuki TTI 25/2/2021 500,000 2020-2021 FY
TetuTve 7/4/2021 705,000 2020-2021 FY
Michuki TTI 7/4/2021 23,385,000 2020-2021 FY
MathioyaTvc 30/6/2021 1,627,500 2020-2021 FY
Michuki TTI 30/6/2021 28,657,500 2020-2021 FY
TetuTwve 30/6/2021 1,117,500 2020-2021 FY

Sub-Total 126,860,000

Transferred (5,070,000)

Total 121,790,000

The above amounts have been communicated to and reconciled with the parent Ministry

Finance Manager
Michuki TTI
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